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Reference and Administrative Details

Board of Governors
Afull list of Governors is given on page 14-15 of these financial statements.
Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are defined as Senior Post Holders and members of the College Executive Team
and were reprasented by the following in 2022/23:

Dr Fazal Dad, Principal and Chief Executive; Accounting Officer

Jennifer Eastham, Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services

Rachel Tarplee, Vice Principal — Curriculum and Quality

Nicola Clayton, Director of Business Development and External Engagement
Caroline Bracewell, Assistant Principal Higher Education {to 9 April 2023)

Damian Stewart, Assistant Principal: Teaching and Learning (to 31 July 2023)

Emma Goodlet, Assistant Principal: Student Support and Experience (to 2 June 2023)
Jean Tracy, Clerk to the Corporation (to 31 August 2022)

Sarah Horeesorun, Director of Governance (from 1 September 2022)

Principal and Registered Office: Feilden Street, Blackburn, BB2 1LH.

Professional advisers; External Auditors: Beever and Struthers
Internal Auditors: RSM UK Consulting LLP
Bankers: Santander UK Plc, Barclays Bank Plc
Solicitors: Forbes Solicitors
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Strategic Report

Nature, Objectives and Strategies

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2023.

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting
Blackburn College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.

Mission Statement

Transforming students' lives and our community, through excellent education, training and support.

Vision Statement

Aspiring, innovating and achieving through excellence.

Value Statements

Excellence - we strive for excellence to realise the potential of our students and staff;

Knowledge - we promote the value of learning in the fostering of curious minds and to aid the acquisition
of knowledge and skills;

Empowerment - we empower and support our students and staff to develop their lives through education
and training;

Equity - we promote equality, diversity and inclusion in our teaching, training, support and customer
services;

Commitment - we are committed to the education, training and support of our students and staff;
Respect - we treat everyone as individuals and with respect.

Strategic Plan

The Strategic Plan is regularly reviewed by the Corporation Board, with the current plan covering the period 2022-
2025. This Strategic Plan was developed following consultation with Governors, Staff, Students, local
stakeholders and employers. The plan on a range of key strategic objectives, covering all aspects of the College
including the student experience:

Student Experience - To provide an excellent student experience which leads to high levels of student
success and supports progression to employment, education and training, raising future aspirations.
Teaching and Learning - To deliver outstanding teaching and assessment practice that enables
students, of all abilities, to succeed in their ambitions, progress to their chosen next steps and prepares
them for leading successful and prosperous lives.

Curriculum - To have an academic and industry-led curriculum which meets the needs of employers, the
local economy, addresses the regional skills shortages, has employability at its heart and provides a
holistic education experience.

Learning Environment - To provide students with an inspiring, sustainable and outstanding learning
environment, which prepares them for industry and enables innovation in teaching and learning.
Partnerships — As an anchor institution, lead and be known for partnership work and collaboration that
increases social mobility and the opportunities for different groups of students and helps communities
grow and thrive,

Each of these pillars are underpinned by cross-cutting themes. The cross-cutting themes run through everything
that the College does and will be at the forefront of our minds;

Student Focus

Quality and Standards
Finance and Resources
People

Communication
Technology
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Strategic Report (Continued}

Financial Objectives

As part of the College’s Strategic Plan, Finance and Resources is a c¢ross culting theme and is supported by a
financial ambition statement to ‘ensure financial stability and effective use of resources in order to invest in our
students and our staff. The performance indicators, which were reviewed and approved by Governors in March
2023, are as foliows:

To dehver an adjusted operatmg ratio of at least 3% of income plus a net cash inflow from operatmg activities
in each year of the plan submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) (Current year and next
two years).

Performance After significant consideration, Governors agreed that the College could budget for a 1%
surplus (based on the FE Commissioners metrics) which after £1.3m of FRS102 pension
costs translates to a £1m deficit. This is a shift from the previous financial strategy of a
minimum of 3% and is reflective of the significant cost pressures from pay rises, inflation
and utilities at a time when income is also falling. Financial health is graded as
outstanding. The plan submitted delivers surpluses in all years.

Objectwe 2

To ensure that the College continues to achieve at least grade "Good” fmanc;a! health in both the ESFA
Financial Plan for aif reported years, with a current ratio of no less than 1.2:1.

Performance The financial plan submitted to the ESFA had an automated financial health grade of
‘Outstanding’ and current ratio of 2,15 for 2022/23. The budget and forecast for the
following two years, under the current and proposed methodology sees the automated
financial health grade remaining as ‘Outstanding’ and current ratios of 2.12 and 2.09

b Objectwe 3

To undertake capital projects to ensure that the campus remains f|t for purpose wrth continued investment
industry standard facilities.

Performance | The College invested £3.7m in the year, £2.38m on Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment and
£1.26m of which was on adaptations and improvements to the campus through capital
investments in ‘The Exchange’, Construction Atrium infill, Electrical workshop, Cyber suite and
the Health ward which were funded through grants received from SDF, T Level Capital Grant
and the OfS.

"% Objective 4.

To ensure that rlsk management plans are in place and fit for purpose.

Performance A Risk Register is maintained, scoring all risks and reporting to Audit Committee and
Corporation,
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Strategic Report (Continued)

Objectlve 5

To generate a cash inflow from operating activities of at least £3.5m.

Performance The net cash flow from operating activities for 2022/23 was £5.4m.

Objectlve 6

To ensure that stafﬂng cost to income ratio remains below 65%, as measured by the FE Commissioner,

Performance For 2022/23 the staffing cost ratio was 62%, excluding Pension and Restructuring costs.

Resources

The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives; this includes our staff,
campus and net assets,

As at 31 July 2023 the College employed 550 full time equivalent staff, of whom 317 are teaching staff, Staff have
arange of qualifications to suit the level at which they teach and the College has a rolling Continuous Professional
Development (CPD) program to support the development of staff across all areas of the College. In addition to
the CPD program, teaching staff can apply for support to undertake research in their area of specialism.

The College has seen an increase in its net assets from £35.9m in 2021/22 to £38.1m in 2022/23 which is a resuit
of a reduction in long term liabilities as a result of reducing the loan balances. The College currently has £6.34m
of outstanding loans, which were used to invest in the College campus. The campus is made up of various
buildings, the Victoria Building, Elizabeth Building, Construction Centre, Marrison Centre, Sixth Form Centre,
University Centre, Beacon Centre, Futures Centre, Regional Automotive Technology Hub and Blackburn Sports
and Leisure Centre (a joint venture with Blackburn with Darwen Council) and forms part of the tangible assets.
The College sold the Blakey Moor building on 16 September 2022,

The College enrolled approximately 6,905 students. The College’s student population includes 2,786 16-to-18-
year-old students, 688 Apprentices, 1,047 Higher Education students and 2,005 adult learners.

Stakeholder Relationships
In line with other colleges and with Universities, Blackburn College has many stakeholders, These include:

Students;

Education sector funding bodies;

FE Commissioner;

Staff;

Local employers (with specific links);
Local Authorities:

Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs);
The local community;

College Bankers;

Other FE and HE institutions;

Trade unions; and

Professional bodies.

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them.
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Public Benefit

Blackburn College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary
of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are Trustees of the charity, are disclosed on
pages 14-15. In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard
for the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the
advancement of education.

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of education
to approximately 6,905 students. The College provides courses without charge to young people, to those who are
unemployed and adults taking English and maths courses. The College adjusts its courses to meet the needs of
focal employers and provides fraining to 688 Apprentices. The College is committed to providing information,
advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses for as many students as possible
regardiess of their educational background.

Development and Performance
Financial results

The College generated an operating surplus in the year of £1,402k (2021/22 — £65k surplus). The College faced
a number of income challenges in respect of Higher Education, Commercial courses and Apprenticeships,
however, through direct management action, savings were secured to minimise the impact.

There is an overall increase in the total comprehensive income reserve of £2.4m after Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) adjustments, note 24 provides detail on the Local Government Pension Scheme valuation and
accounting adjustments.

Cash flows and liquidity

At£13.9m (2021/22 £16.1m), cash and cash equivalents are strong in the Corporation’s view. A capital investment
plan has been developed to re-invest in the College Campus and Curriculum equipment to support the
development of the College, in line with its Strategy. The increase from the prior year is due to an improvement
in operating performance before depreciation,

The College made additional payments to reduce the loan balances during the year of £4m. The loan facility is
subject to financial covenants and during the year to 31 July 2023 there were no concerns with the College’s
operating within the banking covenants. The size of the College’s total borrowing and its approach to interest rates
is modelled to ensure a reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cashfiow.
During the year this margin was comfortably exceeded.

Developments

Student Experience has been a key focus for the College and has made some significant progress in improving
the campus. This has been achieved through capital investments in ‘The Exchange’, Construction Atrium Infill,
Electrical workshop, Cyber suite and Health ward which were funded through grants received from Skills
Development Fund, T Level Capital Grant and the OfS, and general on-site equipment and facilities. These
investments will continue as part of the development of the College, with a clear focus on student experience and
creating a more sustainable campus.

Reserves

The College has accumulated Income and Expenditure reserves of £38.1m (after FRS102 Pension adjustments)
and cash and short-term investment balances of £13.9m. The College currently wishes to continue to accumulate
reserves and cash balances for investment in the estate in line with its strategic objectives.
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Tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £3.62m, of which £2.38m was invested in Fixtures,
Fittings and Equipment. Expenditure will continue in future years as the College continues to develop its facilities
to suit the changing landscape of Education within the sector.

Sources of Income

The College has a reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source, largely from
recurrent grants. In 2022/23 the ESFA provided 61% of total income,

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The College is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in the year to
improve energy efficiency:

s Formed a Sustainability Commitiee,

¢ Appointed a Sustainability Officer.

s Progressed FE climate change road map.

= [ntroduced recyclable consumables within the catering provision.

» Promoted efficiencies across campus through focussed campaigns and sustainability newsletters to staff.

The College has published on its website the Carbon Emissions report, in line with the Government’s streamlined

energy and carbon reporting requirements; https./iwww.blackburn.ac. uk/about-us/corporate-

infermation/publication-scheme/what-we-spend-how-ws-spend-it/.

Future Prospects

Future Developments

The College performs an annual review of all areas as part of the Business Planning cycle, which includes a
review of the appropriateness of the Curriculum offer for our local community and employers. As the Caollege starts
the delivery of T levels, this review has allocated resource for both the development of the Curriculum and
investment in appropriate technology for 2023/24 and beyond.

The annual review also includes a review of the Campus. Further investment is planned across campus with the
refurbishment of the Victoria Building as part of the Department for Education (DfE) Further Education Capital
Transformation Fund and further alterations to the Construction building for the delivery of T Levels.

Financial Plan

The College Governors approved a financial plan in July 2023 which sets the financial objectives for 2023/24 and
2024/25.

Treasury Policies and Objectives

Treasury management is the monitoring and control of the College's cash flows, its banking, money market and
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities: and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.

All new borrowing requires the authorisation of the Department of Education and shall comply with the
requirements of the Financial Memorandum.,

Reserves Policy

The College recognises the importance of reserves in the financial stability of any organisation, and ensures that
there are adequate reserves to support the College’s core activities. The College reserves include £60k held as
restricted reserves. As at the Statement of Financial Position date, the Income and Expenditure reserve stands
at a surplus of £36.1m after £0.5m non-cash pension adjustment (2021/22: surplus of £33.7m). It is the
Corporations intention for reserves to be maintained in line with the Strategic Objectives.
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Going Concern

The financial position of the College as at 31 July 2023, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are described in the
financial statements and accompanying notes, with mitigating action taken to manage the financial risk in terms
of cost control and appropriate use of grants available.

To ensure financial stability the College operates an ongoing cost reduction and efficiency review as part of
Business Planning (planning for the year) and Performance Monitoring (during the year). These reviews allow the
College to be responsive to the changing economic environment in respect of student recruitment and changes
in Government policy and associated grant funding.

The College has year-end cash balances of £13.9m and £6.34m borrowings outstanding on a 25-year term loan
running until July 2034, Future forecasts show net cash inflow from operating activities with sufficient headroom
to manage the financial risks.

A detailed report on Going Concern has been prepared and after making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation
considers that the College has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management

The College has developed and embedded a system of internal control, including financial, operational and risk
management which is designed to protect the College's assets and reputation.

Based on the Strategic Plan, the Vice Principal — Finance and Corporate Services undertakes a comprehensive
review of the risks to which the College is exposed. The post holder identifies systems and procedures, including
specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the College. The internal controls are
then implemented and the subsequent year's appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk
mitigation actions. In addition to the annual review, the Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services will also
consider any risks which may arise as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the College.

A Risk Register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed by the Corporation Board and Audit
Committee at each meeting. The Risk Register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their
potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised
using a consistent scoring system.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Coliege. Not all the factors are
within the College's control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

1. Government Funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the Further and Higher
Education funding bodies. In 2022/23, 69% of the College’s revenue was ultimately public funded and this level
of requirement is expected to continue. There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will remain
the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

The College is aware of several issues which may impact on future funding:

Introduction of T Levels;

Apprenticeship reforms;

Devolution of Adult Education Budget;

Local Authority funding cuts impacting on College services and the wider economy;
Reduction in staffing levels at funding bodies and Government offices to service the College,
Reductions or changes to the Office for Students allocations.

Page 8 of 56



7)) Blackburn
(,\Q?} 7/ College
Strategic Report {Continued)

1. Government Funding (continued)

The College, in conjunction with its key stakeholders, develops strategies in response to the factors affecting the
local area and its funding factor to mitigate the risk. These risks are mitigated in a number of ways:

Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements:

Ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high guality education and training;

Ensuring that the student experience and ability to find a positive destination is supported,;

Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the
various funding bodies as far as possible;

Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit from public funding:
Relevant Curriculum, leading to positive destinations;

Regular dialogue with the funding bodies and with partner universities;

Growth in other income streams, value for money and efficiency reviews.

2. Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The College’s ESFA financial health grade for 2022/23 is autoscored as ‘Outstanding’. Notwithstanding that, the
continuing challenge fo the College’s financial position remains with balancing expenditure on the student
experience with grant and tuition fee funding not linked to inflation and variations in student recruitment.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis;
Regular in year budget monitoring;

Robust financial controls;

Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies;

Relentless focus on costs and efficient deployment of resources.

3. Cybersecurity

Blackburn College continues to invest in Information Technology infrastructure, training, internal awareness
raising. Many external factors present a risk to Blackburn College and mitigations are in place to address these
risks.

4. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the local government pension scheme deficit on the College’s
Statement of Financial Position in line with the requirements of FRS 102.

5. Ofsted and Inspection

In January 2022, the Further Education and Apprenticeship provision at Blackburn College was inspected by
Ofsted and was given the grade ‘Good'. The College continues to focus on the quality of teaching and learning
and the impact of the Curriculum for our stakeholders. Student outcome measures for 2021/22 and 2022/23
showed good progress on the journey to further improve.

Key Performance Indicators (KPP's)

The College has a number of internal KPI's that it monitors at both Governing Body and Executive Management
levels. These include measures such as enrolments against target, retention, attendance progress, staff
utilisation, room utifisation, financial health (as measured by the ESFA), Surplus ratio (as measured by the FE
Commissioner), debt against income (as measured by the FE Commissioner), overall debt levels by customer
type, creditor days, debt cover and performance against loan covenants, Assessment against a number of these
measures are included within this Strategic Report, with regular updates discussed at Board, Committee and
operational management meetings.
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The College’s financial health for 2022/23, as measured, using the ESFA scoring formulae, is ‘Outstanding’. This
is in line with the College’s Strategic Plan.

Student Achievements

FE Achievement rates have increased to 90.3% overall from 89.6% in 2022/23, which is significantly improved
from pre-COVID achievements of 82.4% in 2018/19 and bucks the national trend.

Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 came into force on 1 November 1998, which requires
colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the
provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target set by the Treasury for
payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95%. During the accounting year 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023, the
College paid 92.93% of its invoices within 30 days, with delays in the receipt of valid invoices the major contributor
to this (by valid invoice, it means, with approved purchase order, sent to the Finance team). Average credit days
taken were 18. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for this year (Enil 2021/22).

Equality and Diversity
Equality

Individuals from different cultures, perspectives and experiences are at the heart of Blackburn College. The
College is committed to ensuring equality of apportunity for all who learn and work here. We are guided by our
values in everything we do and recognise that being a diverse and inclusive College helps us fulfil our
responsibility to make a difference in transforming the lives of our students through education.

We respect and value all protected characteristics including age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, gender, religion or and belief, sex and sexual orientation. We
strive vigorously to remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage and we will actively combat
intolerance. This policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a planned basis. The College’'s EDI Policy
is published on the College's Intranet site.

The College publishes an Annual Equality Report and Equality Objectives every four years to ensure compliance
with the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes equality impact assessments on alf new policies and
procedures to ensure the infrastructure within which we operate is free from any discrimination. Equality impact
assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis.

The College is a 'Positive about Disabled’ employer and has committed to the principles and objectives of the
‘Positive about Disabled standard’. The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons,
bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant
who meets the essential criteria for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made
to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career
development and opportunities for promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of
non-disabled employees.

The College has committed to the ‘Mindful Employer’ initiative to assist the mental health wellbeing of staff. The
College has achieved accreditation to the Committed to Equality (C2E) standard at the gold (highest) level. The
College has also implemented an updated Equality and Diversity training programme which all staff have
attended. Refresher training and training for new starters is carried out on an ongoing basis.
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Disability Equality

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010:

a) As part of its accommodation strategy the College updated its access audit. An access audit was undertaken
and the results of this form part of our Estates strategy.

b) The Additional Learning Support team liaise with the Estates team and curriculum teams in terms of any
accessibility issues identified as part of our anticipatory duty or by students on the programme to ensure full
accessibility. This includes Personal Emergency Evacuation Procedures and any other aspects which may
be buildings or equipment related to secure appropriate resolutions.

¢) There is range of specialist equipment, managed by the Learning Technology Service which the College
makes available for use by students, which is in addition to a range of assistive technology solutions available.

d) Students at the College benefit from specialist advisory teachers, including a Teacher of the Deaf and Teacher
for Visual Impairment. The Additional Learning Support Team employ specialists to provide in class support to
promote access to education. There are a number of Academic Learning Support Assistants who can provide
a variety of support for learning.

e) There is a continuing programme of staff development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate
support for students who have learning difficulties and/or disabilities which ensures that the College meets the
requirements in the Special Educational Needs and Disability Code of Practice as well as our Equality Duty.

f} Inclusive learning programmes are described in College prospectuses. Achievements and destinations are
recorded and published in the standard College format,

g) Counselling and welfare services are described in the College Student Guide, which is shared with students
via Moodle together with the Complaints and Student Behaviour Policy and Procedures.

in addition, the College has a Single Equality statement that encompasses all protected groups and pledges zero
tolerance to discrimination of any kind. Full details can be obtained from the College website, by emailing
thehub@blackburn.ac.uk or writing to The Hub Services, Blackburn College, Beacon Centre, Blackburn, BB2
1LH.

The College also has a Single Equality Committee to monitor key metrics, identify any gaps in progress / metrics
and to work across College in supporting learners and staff.
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Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish
information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. The information below covers the

published period of 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023;

Numbers of employees who were relevant FTE employee number
22 19
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 0
1-50% 22
51-99% 0
100% 0
Total cost of facility time £47.6k
Total pay bill £21.8m
Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.08%
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time 100%

Events after the end of the reporting year

Disclosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the College's auditars are unaware; and each member has taken all the
steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
College's auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 8 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

1 b Lﬂ;/ h
Lillian Croston
Chair to the Corporation

Page 12 of 56



Qesige

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the
College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period
from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The College endeavours to conduct its business:;

i. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to Colleges from the Assoclation of Colleges in The Code of
Good Governance for English Colleges (“The Code").

In the opinion of the Governors, the College continues to comply with all the provisions of “The Code”, and it has
complied throughout the year. This opinion is based on an internal review of compliance with “The Code” reported
to the Corporation Board in December 2022, whereby the Board self-assessed its compliance with “The Code”
as Good.

An internal audit of Governance and Risk management was completed in Autumn 2022. The assessment of
governance was based on a review of ten key areas within “The Code”. The audit returned the highest opinion of
substantial assurance with no recommendations. This was reported to the Audit Committee in November 2022
and to the Corporation Board through provision of those minutes, and a report from the Director of Governance.

An External Review of Governance was completed in spring 2023. This was completed by an independent
provider and the scope of the review met the requirements of the Department for Education Guide on External
Governance Reviews in Further Education and the Post 16 Education and Skills Act. Many strengths were
identified during the review and there were no areas of concern. Financial oversight is a strength, the Governors
understand their role well, and the Corporation Board complies with alf statutory and regulatory duties, supported
by robust processes ably managed by the Director of Governance. The findings of the External Governance
Review were presented to the Corporation Board at its meeting 7 July 2023,

The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular
duty to abserve the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In carrying out its responsibilities, it
takes full account of “The Code" initially issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally
adopted on 3 July 2015, with the stipulation that an extension to the normal number of terms of office for Governors
would be a matter reserved for determination by the Corporation Board having conducted a current and future
skills analysis and performance assessments of its Governors.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who are
also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these Financial
Statements.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

The Corporation

Blackburn
College

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report are
listed in the table below;

oo Dateof [ iTerm:i] i Date of - Statusof L s e Aendance in -
_Name | Appointment | " of Office | Resignation | Appointment | COmmittees Served ) Hoo0123
Principal and Policy & Resources,
Prfazal ' 1yan2019 | Exofficio Chief Learning & Quality, 200
Executive Governance Panel, °
Chair of Board;
Lillian Reappojnted Leaming & Qua”ty, 20120
Croston | 12 Mar 2021 | 31 Mar2024 Extemnal | Governance Panel, 100%
Remuneration,
Student Voice
Vice Chair of Board:;
Reappointed 31 March Chair of Policy & 8/8
Governance Panel,
Chair of Remuneration
Mark Reappointed Chair of Learning & 12714
Allanson | 25 Mar 2022 | 31 Mar 2025 External Quality 86%
Governance Panel
Fran | 150ct 2022 | 31 Mar 2025 External . &9
Crossiand Policy & Resources 89%
Paul Reappointed Decggnber dit Student Voi 5/5
Fleming o5 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2025 022 External Audit, Student Voice 100%
Ram Gupt . . 8/9
am upta | 12 Mar 2021 | 31 Mar 2024 External Learning and Quality 89%
0
Vice Chair of Board
. f 1/4/2023);
Gainerine | Reappointed | o 1o o005 External Lea:r'ﬁ::g and Qu;Iity 1013
Hill OBE '
25 Mar 2022 Student Voice 7%
Remuneration
Khadija ) 5/6
\brahimova 14 Qct 2022 31 OCt 2023 Student Audit 83%
i ij , . 2/6
maan ljaz | 24 Qct 2022 | 31 Oct 2023 Student Learning & Quality 339
0
Chris . ‘ 719
Johnson | 20 Oct 2017 | 31 Mar 2026 External Chair of Audit 789%
Michael Re- , 8/10
Lee appointed | 31 Mar 2024 Staff Policy & Resources 80%
12 Mar 2021 ¢
8/9
Mark Moren | 7 pay 2021 | 31 Mar 2024 Staff Learning and Quality N
a
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)

| Dateof | Term ~ Date of | “statusof | . i Aftendance in
| Appointment | of Office | Resignation | appointment | .- Sommiiees Served | - og553
: i 911
Paul Morris | 1 Apr 2020 | 31 Mar 2026 Extermal Policy & Resources
Remuneration 82%
Ridwaan 17 Mar 2023 | 31 Mar 2026 External Policy & Resources 414
Omar 100%
Policy & Resources 1112
Arif Patel 1 Apr2020 | 31 Mar 2026 External Governance Panel 9%
Student Voice ’
. , . 8/9
Taiyab Sufi | 2 Jul 2021 | 31 Mar 2024 External Audit
100%
Steve . 6/10
Waggott 9 Nov 2018 | 31 Mar 2026 Externai Policy & Resources 60%

The Governance Framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the College
together with other information such as performance against recruitment targets, proposed capital expenditure,
quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and envircnmental issues. The
Corporation normally meets four times per year.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of Committees. Each Committee has terms of reference,
which have been approved by the Corporation. These Committees are Learning and Quality, Policy and
Resources, Audit, Remuneration, Governance Panel (Search) and Student Voice. Full minutes of all meetings,
except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available on the College's website:
www.blackburn.ac.uk or from the Director of Governance at the College's registered address; Blackburn College,
Feilden Street, Blackburn, BB2 1LH.

The Director of Governance maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Governors. The register
is available for inspection at the above address.

All Gavernors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's
expense and have access to the Director of Governance, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that all
applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Director
of Governance are matters for the Corporation as a whole,

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings.
Briefings are provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
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management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and
Accounting Officer are separate.

Board and Committee meetings are held in person, with attendance via Microsoft Teams being facilitated for those
members unable to attend in person. All Governors have been issued with an iPad to facilitate paperless meetings
and have been provided with training on how to use Microsoft Teams.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The
Corporation has a Governance Panel, which comprises four Corporation members and one co-opted member,
which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation's consideration.
The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. In 2022/23, seven
vacancies arose and the position as at 31 July 2023 was that there were three vacancies.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding three years. The number of
consecutive terms of office is set at three, but this can be waived where an appointment is made mid-term or
where it is in the best interests of the Corporation to make an appointment for a further term(s), for example where
a member takes on a more senior role, such as Chair or Vice Chair.

Corporation Performance

The Board has completed its work to enhance the College's Governance infrastructure and as agreed in the
Review of Governance, Governors have been appointed to at least one Committee and that where possible,
appointments to Committees have been made in accordance with the skills mix of Governors, to make best use
of skills, knowledge and experience in decision making processes. Committee membership is considered when
new appointments to the Board are made to make best use of Governers skills, knowledge and experience.

The Governance Panel agreed a set of metrics to be used in the assessment of Board members’ performance at
its meeting on 29 April 2022. The Corporation Board members again cairied out an appraisal of the Chair and
each Governor was invited fo participate in a Self-Assessment Review, with both sets of results being considered
by the Governance Panel at its meeting on 10 October 2022 and in the full Board meeting on 14 October 2022,
Similar performance reviews will be undertaken for the 2022/23 academic year.

In order to further enhance Corporation performance and as part of Governor Development, a number of
presentations have been made at the Board and Committees. Governor development/training opportunities are
actively promoted by the Director of Governance.

An internal audit of Governance and Risk management was completed in Autumn 2022. The assessment of
governance was based on a review of ten key areas within “The Code”. The audit returned the highest opinion of
substantial assurance with no recommendations.

Training and development activities for members of the Corporation Board have been completed during the year.
This includes presentations at Audit Committee on a number of risk themed topics: Energy Reduction and
Sustainability, ONS Reclassification, Capital Projects, Internal Audit Plan and Strategy Development 2023/24,.
and on Safeguarding and Prevent, and the Skills Biil updates for all Board members. Governors have also
completed individual training such as the Association of Colleges (AoC) and Education and Training Foundation
(ETF) CPD: Governance Development Programme modules on, for example, Chairing a Committee, Local
Agreements, Accountability Statements and Reclassification The Chair of the Corporation Board has also
completed CPD modules and participated in local, regional and national Chair's network events and meetings.
The Director of Governance has a record of all Governor training undertaken during the year.
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The Clerk to the Corporation retired on 31 August 2022. A new Director of Governance was appointed from 1
September 2022. The Board was mindful of the requirement that the person selected should have a qualification
relevant to the role, or equivalent experience.

A detailed handover was undertaken during September and October 2022,

The postholder has the relevant experience and has participated in CPD, and successfully completed the
Induction and Mentoring element of the new Governance Professional Qualification delivered by the ETF/Institute
of Directors and sponsored by the DfE,

The Director of Governance has completed and is accredited as having done the Induction and Mentoring element
of the new Governance Professional Qualification delivered by the Education Training Foundation (ETF) and
Institute of Directors, and sponsored by the Depariment for Education.

Since their appointment, the Director has completed substantial CPD, especially focused around the ONS
announcement and subsequent changes through webinars and ESFA Bitesize briefings. The Director of
Governance is a member and contributor to the local, regional, and national Governance Professionals networks
and attends regular update sessions provided by the Association of Colleges {AcC) and Eversheds to ensure
skills remain current and to be informed of changes to best advise the College and Corporation Board. The
Director of Governance is affiliated with the National Association of School and College Clerks; Chartered
Governance Institute UK & Ireland.

Governance Review

The Corporation Board self-assesses its performance annually, most recently in Autumn 2022 and grades itself
as 'Good' and governance as fully compliant against the current AOC Code of Governance for English Colleges.

An Internal Audit of key governance and risk management processes was commissioned in Summer/Autumn
2022. The audit returned the highest opinion of substantial assurance with no recommendations.

The Corporation Board commissioned an external review of governance as part of its 2022-23 business calendar.
The scope of the review met the requirements of the Department for Education Guide on External Governance
Reviews In Further Education and the Post 16 Education and Skills Act. The Review was undertaken between
March and July 2023 and concluded that the Corporation Board has a well-functioning and effective Audit
Committee, chaired by an experienced governor. Additional audit and finance experience has been added to the
Cammittee through the appointment of co-opted members. As with other aspects of governance, both governors
and managers appreciate their open and honest relationship based on trust, support and appropriate challenge.
The quality of paperwork is good. There is a positive refationship with the college’s auditors and the committee
inputs into the development of the internal audit programme. The Review commented that the College
Governance was strong, effective and fully compliant with ACoP.

The External Governance Review was undertaken by an independent, an Associate of Rockborn Management
Consultants, with extensive Governance experience.

The Board has also continued to review its performance against the Code of Good Governance for English
Colleges and RSM: Turning Lights Green — A Best Practice Guide for Audit Committee. This was reported to the
Audit Committee in June 2023 and fo the Corporation Board in its meeting 7 July 2023.

The work of the Board and its Committees has been in accordance with the relevant calendars of business and
has also included ad hoc reports as required.

Remuneration Committee

Throughout the year ended 31 July 2023, the Corporation’s Remuneration Committee comprised three members
of the Corporation. In taking account the best practice identified in the Association of Colleges (AoC) Code of
Good Governance for English Colleges, the Vice Chair of the Corporation Board Chairs this Committee. The
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Committee's responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Corporation on the remuneration and benefits
of the Accounting Officer and other Senior Post-Holders, including the Director of Governance.

Details of remuneration for these posts for the year ended 31 July 2023 are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting Officer and Chair)
and fwo co-opted members, three of whom are finance/audit specialists. The Committee operates in accordance
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. At 31 July 2023 there is one vacancy,

The Audit Committee meets four times a year and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal and
external auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of College
management.

The College's Internal Auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings fo management and the Audit
Committee.,

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations, and internal audit
undertake periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal and external auditors and their
remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corporatian.

The Audit Committee met four times in the year to 31 July 2023. The members of the committee and their
attendance records are shown below:

Committee member WMeetings attended

Chris Johnson 4

Paul Flerriing 2 {out of a possible 2 resigned Dec 2022)
Khadija lbrahimova (appointed 14 Oct 2022) 2 {out of a possible 3}

Taiyab Sufi 4

David Swift (co-opted member start date 1 Apr 2023) - 1{out of a possible 1)

John Whittaker (co-opted member until 31 Mar 2023) 3 (out of a possible 3)

Sharjeel Salahuddin (co-opted member) (appointed

15 Oct 2021) 4

Internal Control
Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal contrel and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
College objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss,

The Corporation has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Principal and Chief Executive, as Accounting
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies,
aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he is personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the Funding Agreement between Blackburn College and
the funding bedies. The Principal and Chief Executive is also responsible for reporting fo the Corporation any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to;

» identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives,
» to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and
* to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Blackburn College for the year ended 31 July 2023 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handfe risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed, together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that
there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that has
been in place for the year ended 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual reports and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and by the Corporation.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties, a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

» Comprehensive annual budgeting system with an annual budget which is reviewed and agreed by the
Corporation;

* Regular reviews by the Policy and Resources Committee and the Corporation of periodic and annual
financial reports, which indicate performance against forecasts (including reforecasts during the year);
Setting targets to measure financial and other operational performance;

Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines and delegated authorities to spend;

+ The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Blackburn College engages RSM uk Risk Assurance Services LLP to provide an Internal Audit service which
complies with the ESFA Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal Auditors service is informed by
an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis.
The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors provide the Governing body with an annual report on Internal Audit activity
in the College. The report includes the Internal Auditor's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the College’s system of risk management, controls and governance processes.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The College has a Risk Management Palicy that has been approved by the Corporation and the Principal and is
available for all staff to see on the College intranet. The Risk Management Plan is discussed by the Executive
Team on a regular basis and is submitted to each mesting of the Audit Committee, with highlights presented to
Corporation. The Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services is the appointed Risk Champion for the College.
The Risk Management plan is reviswed annually by the Executive Team, this is to ensure that they have a good
understanding of the risks facing College, reiterate the process for identifying risks and to give the opportunity to
hightight any new risks,

The principal risks, government funding, financial viability and Ofsted / Inspection as identified in the Strategic
Report are noted as key risks in the College’s Risk Register.
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Control weaknesses identified

A total of five Internal Audits plus a follow-up audit were undertaken during the year. A sub-contractors health
check was also commissioned. All reports were considered by the Audit Committee. No significant areas of
weaknesses or failures were identified.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation has met its contractual responsibilities under its funding agreements and contracts with the
ESFA. Each year a Regularity Audit, which tests compliance, is undertaken by management, reviewed by Audit
Committee and then audited by the External Auditors.

The Department for Education and Education and Skills Funding Agency introduced new controls for the College
on 29 November 2022 on the day that the Office for National Statistics reclassified colleges as public sector
organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA Chief Executive communicated these changes to all college
accounting officers and explained plans to introduce a college financial handbook in 2024. The College has
reviewed its policies, procedures and approval processes in line with these new requirements to ensure there are
systems in place to identify and handle any transactions for which DfE approval is required.

Statement from the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has advised the Board of Governors that the Corporation has an effective framework for
Governance and Risk Management in place. The Audit Committee believes the Corporation has effective internal
controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committee in 2022/23 and up to the date of the approval of
the financial statements are:

+ Assessed the performance of the External and Internal Audit function;

o Received External Audit report from the External Auditors and considered the audit outcomes for onward
recommendations fo the Board,

« Considered a scope of work for the Internal Auditors for recommendation to the Board. The agreed areas
being Safeguarding and Prevent, Governance and Risk Handling, Key Financial Controls — Cash, Cyber
Security and Data Protection;

Sub-contracting Controls — health check report;
Received Internal Audit reports on the agreed scope of work, considered the outcomes and monitored
management action against those outcomes and recommendations.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal and Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

The work of the Internal Auditors;
The work of the Executive Team within the College who have respensibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework; and

« Comments made by the College's External Auditors and the reporting accountant for regularity
assurance in their management lefters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Audit Committee which oversees the work of the internal auditors and other
sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is
in place.

The Executive Team receives reports on key performance and risk indicators and considers possible control
issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded within the departments and
reinforced by risk awareness training. The Executive Team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports
from Internal Audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.
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The Audit Committee's role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal control.
The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon
from the senior management and Executive teams and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the
relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception.

At its meeting on 13 October 2023, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July
2023 by considering documentation from the Executive Team and Internal Audit, and taking account of events
since 31 July 2023,

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that the
College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has fulfilled
its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the
bady and the safeguarding of their assets”.

Approved by the members of the Corporation on 8 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

ZA Crvo L’tsy'« ?‘7 '

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad
Chair to the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive
{Accounting Officer)
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Governing body’s statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance with
funding body terms and conditions of funding

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding, under the College's
grant funding agreement and contracts with the ESFA. As part of its consideration, the Corporation has had due
regard to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA.

We confirm on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are able to
identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the College, or material non-compliance with the terms
and conditions of funding under the College’s grant funding agreements and contract with the ESFA, or any other
public funder.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the ESFA.

Approved by the members of the Corporation on 8 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

ﬁ (q/m &7

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad
Chair to the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive
(Accounting Officer)
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The members of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Statement of responsibilities of the members of the Corporation

Within the terms and conditions of the College's grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA and any other
relevant funding body, the Corporation — through its Accounting Officer — is required to prepare financial
statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA’s College accounts direction and
the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
College and its surplus / deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess whether the corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting assumptions qualifications or
mitigating actions as appropriate; and

s prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless itis mappropnate to assume that the College
will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Strategic Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it
is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy,
at any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1982 and
Charities Act 2011 and other relevant accounting standards. It is respansible for taking steps that are reasonably
open to it to safeguard assets of the College and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation; the work carried out
by auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislaticn in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern them. In addition,
they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA, and other public funds, are used only in accordance
with the ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed from
time to time by ESFA, or any other public funder. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are
appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure they are
used properly. In addition, Members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and
effective management of the College's resources and expenditure, so that the benefits that should be derived
from the application of public funds from the ESFA and other public bodies are not put at risk,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 8 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

/Cm%

Lillian Croston
Chair to the Corporation
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independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of the Corporation of Blackburn College

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Blackburn College (the "College”} for the year ended 31 July 2023
which comprise the College statement of comprehensive income, the College balance sheet, the College
statement of changes in reserves, the statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of [reland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our apinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2023 and of the College’s
income and expenditure, gains and losses, and changes in reserves and cash flows, for the year then
ended:

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

s have been prepared in accordance with 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for
Further and Higher Education, Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, and the Accounts Direction, for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 August
2019, issued by the Office for Students.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the College in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to ocur audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Members of the Corporation use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College's ability to continue as a
going cencern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibitities of the Members of the Corporation with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Financial Statements other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Members of the Corporation is responsible for the
other information contained within the Report and Financial Statements. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

Page 24 of 56



) Blackburn
/ College

Our responsthility is fo read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction

We are required to report on the following matters by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction. In our opinion,
in all material respects:

e funds from whatever source administered by the College for specific purposes have been properly
applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

s funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research England),
the Education and Skills Funding Agency and Department for Education have been applied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and

« the requirements of the Office for Students’ accounts direction for the relevant year's financial
statements have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-18 Audit Code of Practice 2022 to
2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept;
s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations required for our audit.

Further, we are required by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction to report to you if the results of our audit
work indicate that the College’s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year disclosed
in Note 10 has been materialtly misstated.

» We are also required by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction to report to you where the results of
our audit work indicate that the College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial
statements has been materially misstated.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation of Blackburn College

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Members of the Corporation Responsibilities set out on page 23,
the Members of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Members of the Corporation determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Members of the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going coneern basis of accounting unless the Members of the Corporation either intend to liquidate the College
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

lrregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on
the determinaticn of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures
to help identify instances of non-compliance with other [aws and regulations that may have a material effect on
the financial statements, and fo respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with faws and
regulations identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance,
to ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations
and for the prevention and detection of fraud,

in identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit
engagement team;

« obtained an understanding of the nature of the secfor, including the legal and regulatory frameworks
that the College operate in and how the College is complying with the legal and regulatory frameworks;

¢ inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of
fraud; and

« discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the financial statements are FRS 102, Further and Higher Education SORP, the College Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, and Regulatory Advice 9: Accounts Direction published
by the Office for Students’. We performed audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a
material impact on the financial statements which included reviewing financial statement disclosures.

The College is also subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material impact on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, including Further and Higher
Education Act 1992, Charities Act 2011, taxation legislation, data protection, anti-bribery, employment,
environmental and health and safety legislation. We performed audit procedures to inguire of management and
those charged with governance whether the College is in compliance with these faw and regulations and
inspected correspondence and inspected correspondence with licensing or regulatory authorities.
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The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls and revenue recognition as
the areas where the financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit
procedures performed included but were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments and
evaluating the business rationale in relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into
outside the normal course of business, challenging judgments and estimates and inspecting funding agreements
and allocations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at http://www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Members of the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding
Agreement published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter dated 10 June
2022. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Members of the Corporation, as a body,
those matters we are engaged to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fuliest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Members of the
Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Rerires ondh  Strushers

Feor and on behalf of
BEEVER AND STRUTHERS
One Express

1 George Leigh Street
Manchester

M4 5DL

Date: 20.12.23
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Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity

To: The Board of Governors of Blackburn College and Secretary of State for Education acting through
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 June 2022 and further to the requirements and
conditions of funding in ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention
that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure dishursed and income received by Blackburn
College during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice (“the Cede”) issued by the
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder. In line
with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants
generated through the Individualised Learner Record data returns, for which the ESFA or devolved authority has
other assurance arrangements in place.

This report is made solely to the Board of Governors of Blackburn College and ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board of Governors
of Blackburn College and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Board
of Governors of Blackburn College and the ESFA for our work, for this repott, or for the conclusion we have
formed.

Respective responsibilities of Blackburn College and the reporting accountant

The Board of Governors of Blackburn College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work
which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1
August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited
assurance engagement as definad in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagement and
canseguently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the college's
income and expenditure.
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The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the Board of Governors;
Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment and any
weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements;

Reviewing the self-assessment questionnaire which supports the representations included in the Chair
of Governors and Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and compliance with the
framework of authorities;

Testing a sample of transactions with related parties;

Confirming through enquiry and sample tesling that the Board of Governors has complied with its
procurement policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

This work was integrated with our audit of the financial statements and evidence was also derived from the

conduct

of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion.

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 has not been

applied

to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

Signed:

Beo e

For and

-~ onde. Strushars

on behalf of

BEEVER AND STRUTHERS
One Express

1 George Leigh Street
Manchester

M4 5DL

Date: 20.12.23
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 July 2023

Income

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts

Other income
Investment income

Total income

Expenditure

Staff costs

Restructuring costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs

Total expenditure

Surplus before other gains and losses
Surplus on disposal of assets

Surplus before tax

Taxation

Surplus for the year

Actuarial gain in respect of pensions schemes

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Notes

Oy O & G b

-
© 5 o~~~

11

24

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.

The notes on pages 34 fo 56 form part of these financial statements
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2023 2022
£°000 £7000
24,465 21,816
8,969 10,682
1,081 853
2,437 2,446
545 79
37,477 35,876
22,876 23,173
247 228
8,749 8,081
3,726 3,234
477 1,095
36,075 35,811
1,402 65
327 12
1,729 77
1,729 77
538 29,805
2,267 29,882




Statement of Changes in Reserves

Balance at 1 August 2021

Surplus  from  the  Statement  of

Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income {Pension
defined benefit adjustment, as per note 23)

Transfers between revaluation and income
and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Balance at 31 July 2022

Surplus  from  the  Statement  of

Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income (Pension
defined benefit adjustment, as per note 24)

Transfers between revaluation and income
and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Balance at 31 July 2023

) Blackburn
@*} College

oxpondiure  Revaluation  Restrcted Tota
reserve £000 £7000 £'000
3,713 2,222 60 5,995
77 ; ; 77
20,805 _ _ 29,805
129 (129) ] _
30,011 (129) . 29,882
33,724 2,093 60 35,877
1,729 - - 1,729
538 _ _ 538
129 (129) ; }
2,396 (129) - 2,267
36,120 1,064 60 38,144

The notes on pages 34 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 July 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Non-Current Assets
Tangible fixed assets 13 48,636 48,842
Endowment assets 15 60 80
48,695 48,902
Current assets
Trade debtors and other receivables 16 3,205 2,235
Cash and cash equivalents 21 13,883 16,085
17,088 18,320
Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 17 (8,0986) (8,154)
Net Current assets 8,992 10,166
Total assets less current liabilities 57,6887 59,068
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 18 (18,529) (21,976)
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations 24 - -
Other provisions 20 {1,014) {1,215)
Net assets 38,144 35,877
Restricted reserves
Income and expenditure account — Endowment reserve 60 60
Unrestricted reserves
Income and expenditure account - unrestricted 36,120 33,724
Revaluation reserve 1,064 2,093
Total unrestricted reserves 38,084 35,817
Total reserves 38,144 35,877

The financial statements on pages 30 to 56 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation on 8

December 2023 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:
. -
l{’ Crr | 6\70 -

Lillian Croston Dr Fazal Dad
Chair to the Corporation Principal and Chief Executive

{Accounting Officer)
The notes on pages 34 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 July 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

(Increase) in debtors

Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due within one year
Increasef/(Decrease) in creditors due after one year
(Decrease) in provisions

Pensions costs less contributions payable
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income

Interest payable

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets
Investment income

Payments made to acquire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Repayments of amounts borrowed

Increase/(Decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents in
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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2023 2022
£'000 £'000
1,729 77
3,726 3,234
(970) (532)

(55) 950
1,109 (362)
(201) (276)

538 2,186
(545) (79)

437 637
(327) (12)
5,441 5,823

427 12

545 79

(3,622) (1,762)

(2,650) (1,671)
(437) (637)

(4,556) (716)

(4,993) (1,353)

(2,202) 2,799

16,085 13,286

13,883 16,085
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Statement of accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Praclice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2078 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the ESFA College Accounts Direction
for 2022-23 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 — “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of ireland” (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and
has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
Going Concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are
set out in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are
described in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

The College currently has £6.34m borrowings with bankers, a 25-year term loan running until July 2034,

To ensure financial stability the College operates an ongoing cost reduction and efficiency review as part of
Business Planning {planning for the year) and Performance Monitoring (during the year). These reviews allow the
College to be responsive to the changing economic environment in respect of COVID, Brexit, student recruitment
and changes in Government policy and associated grant funding.

The Coliege's forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing facility
and covenants for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason has continued to adopt the going concern basis in the
preparation of its financial statements.

Recognition of income

Revenue grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for under
the accruals model as permitted by FRS 102, Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best
estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under
achievement for the Adult Education Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised
in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the
year end reconciliation process with the funding body following the accounting period end, and the results of any
funding audits. 16-19 learner funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to
contract adjustments,

The recurrent grant from Office for Students represents the funding allocations attributable to the current financial
year and is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is
entitled to the income and performance related conditiocns have been met. Income received in advance of
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Statement of
Financial Position and released to income as the conditions are met,

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accruals model as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants are recognised
in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.
Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within
creditors on the Statement of Financial Position and released to income as conditions are met.

Fee income

Income from {uition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the period
for which it is received and includes all fees payable by students or their sponsors. Rebates and discounts are
offered in exceptional circumstances, as approved by the Executive Team.

Investment income

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is
earned on a receivable basis. Income from restricted endowment funds is not expended in accordance with the
restrictions of the endowment in the period, it is transferred from the Statement of Comprehensive Income to
accumulated income within endowments funds.

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds. Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are exciuded from the
income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment henefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees' working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries cn
the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an
expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities
are measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high-quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The carrying value of any resulting pension scheme asset
is restricted to the extent that the College is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in
the future or through refunds from the scheme, For the year ended July 2023 no refunds or reductions in
contributions have been received, or can be expected to be received, therefore, managements judgement to
adopt the requirements of FRS 102 (para 28.22) and recognise a balance of nil for the pension asset/liability. The
net surplus or deficit is presented separately from other assets on the Statement of financial Position. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.
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1. Statement of accounting policies {continued)

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income
and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual
return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance costs.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Short term employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Enhanced pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College annually. An
estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of staff is
charged in full to the College’s income in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge
is made to provisions in the Statement of Financial Position using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided
by the funding bodies.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the
2019 FE HE SORP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that
revaluation,

The cost of tangible fixed assets includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended purpose.

Land and buildings

Freshold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

Harrison Centre — 40 years

Beacon Centre — 40 years

Construction Centre — 50 years

Elizabeth Building — 50 years

University Centre — 40 years

Regional Automotive Technology Hub — 40 years
Sixth Form Centre — 40 years

Blackburn Sports and |eisure Centre — 40 years
Futures Centre — 40 years

Victoria Building — 40 years

® & & & & & 2 B

Freshold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite usefut life. Within each building there are
elements which are charged at a range of rates of depreciation to represent their expected useful life.

Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the College of between 5 and 50

years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of their useful
economic life of between 5 and 50 years.

Page 36 of 56



Blackburn
College

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a systematic basis
consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year
and those due after more than one year. Where freehold land is acquired with the aid of specific grants, the value
of the grant received is deducted from the cost of the land.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. No concerns identified.

Any plant and machinery relating to buildings is shown separately from land and buildings in note 12 and is
depreciated over its expected useful economic life to the College of between 10 and 40 years.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and
buildings, which were revalued as at 1 August 2014, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of
these properties in the future,

Assefs under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct
costs, incurred to 31 July 2023. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets itis charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which case it is
capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Equipment

Equipment items costing less than £1,000 are recognised as expenditure in the period of acquisition. All other
equipment is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment and building works are depreciated over their useful economic life (UEL) as follows:

Plant and Machinery- Up to 40 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL
Building adaptations- Up to 10 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL
Building components- Up to 25 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL
Motor vehicles- 5 years on a straight-line basis

General equipment- 5 years on a straight-line basis

Computer equipment- 4 years or 7 years on a straight-line basis, dependent upon UEL

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as above. The
related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditars, and are released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a systematic basis consistent
with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and those
due after more than one year.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments, Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Heritage assets

Inherited equipment has been depreciated on a straight-line basis over its useful economic life and is now fuily
depreciated.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, including when they are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are
recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

Cosfs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1 August 2014 are
spread over the minimum lease term.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially alt the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance leases
are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as
owned assets.

Minimum lease payments are apporticned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding.

Investments and endowment assets

Investments are carried at historical cost plus incidental expenses less any provision for impairment in their value,
Current asset investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of their original cost
and net realisable value. Investments that form part of endowment assets are included in the Statement of
Financial Position at market value.

Inventories

Inventories are written off to the Statement Of Comprehensive Income account in the year of purchase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if
they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3
months or less from the date of acquisition. None were held at the balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.
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1. Statement of accounting policies {continued)

All loans, investments and short term deposits held are classified as basic financial instruments in accordance
with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any costs (historical cost}.
FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the

Financial liabilities and equity

College has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and
so these financial instruments are stated on the Statement of Financial Position at historical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the financial year with all resulting exchange differences being taken to the income
and expenditure account in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 8 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The Cellege is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 6% of the VAT
charged on its inputs. lrrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost
of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when;

+ the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event(s);
+ itis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and
s areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation
is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a
finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Debtors

Debtors with no stated interest rate and receivable within one year are recorded at the transaction price. Where
there is a risk of not fully recovering a debt, a bad debt provision is provided for. The provision is calculated
dependant on whether the debtor is an existing student, the age, the type and then the value of the debt and is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Creditors

Creditors with no stated interest rate and payable within one year are recorded at transaction price. A liability is
recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which has accrued at the balance sheet date and
carried forward to future periods. This is measured at the salary cost of future holiday entitlement so accrued at
the balance sheet date.

Liquid resources

Investments in short term deposits include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks and bulilding
societies and government securities.

Agency arrangements

Related payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded
from the income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal
economic benefit related to the transaction.

Judgements in applying accounting policies
tn preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

« Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or finance
leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

e Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of tangible assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial
performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and
expected future perfarmance of that unit.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

« Tangible fixed assels
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken info account. Residual value assessments
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

+ [ ocal Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit asset or liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions
used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension assetfliability.
Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at
31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2023. Any differences
between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amount of the pension liability.
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2. Funding body grants

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Recurrent grants
Education and Skills Funding Agency — 16 -19 18,711 16,424
Education and Skills Funding Agency — Adult 3,178 3,095
Grant income from the Office for Students (OfS) 341 392
Specific grants
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Grant 842 753
ESFA Condition Fund - 70
Releases of government capital grants: Education and Skills Funding Agency 808 728
Releases of capital grants: Office for Students (OfS) 584 354
Total funding body grants 24,464 21,816

As an OfS registered College a single table is required to show grant and fee income for courses at Level 4 and
above, The table below summarises this information, which forms part of the disclosures in note 2 and 3;

2023 2022

£'000 £000
Recurrent grants
Grant income from the Office for Students (OfS) 341 392
Releases of capital grants: Office for Students {(OfS) 584 354
Fees for HE loan supported courses 6,831 8,265
Total recurrent OfS grants 7,756 9,011
3. Tuition fees and education contracts

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Adult education fees 67 50
Apprenticeship fees and contracts 1,806 1,959
Fees for FE loan supported courses 265 408
Fees for HE loan supported courses 6,831 8,265
Total tuition fees and education contracts 8,969 10,682
4. Other grants and contracts

2023 2022

£000 £'000
European Commission grants 87 170
QOther grants and contracts 974 683
Total Other grants and contracts 1,061 853
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5. Other income

Catering

Other income generating activities: full cost provision
Teaching related activities

Exam and registration cost recovery

Premises income

Support and admin activities

Miscellaneous income

Total Other income

6. Investment income

Interest receivable

Net return on Pension Scheme (Note 24)

Total Investment income

7. Staff costs

) Blackburn
C@.ﬁ College

2023 2022
£°000 £2000
790 782
744 769
71 71

2 11

84 94
536 533
210 186
2,437 2,446
2023 2022
£7000 £7000
507 79
38 -
545 79

The average number of persons (including Key Management Personnel) employed by the College during the

year, described as head counts, was:

Teaching staff
Non-teaching staff

Total

VWages and salaries
Social Security costs
Other pension costs;
Employer contributions

Pension defined benefit charge (excluding interest payable in note 9)

Contracted out staffing services

Restructuring costs — contractual

Total staff costs
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2023 2022
413 419
302 296
716 715

2023 2022

£'000 £000

17,469 16,770

1,688 1,514

3,066 3,021
441 1,657

22,564 22,862
312 311
22,876 23,173
247 228
23,123 23,401
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7. Staff costs (continued)
Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controfling the activities of the College and are represented by the Senior events Holders and College Executive
Team which comprises the Principal and Chief Executive, Vice Principal - Finance and Corporate Services, Vice
Principal: Curriculum and Quality, Assistant Principal Higher Education, Assistant Principal Teaching and
Learning, Assistant Principal Student Support and Experience, Director of Business Development and External
Engagement and Director of Governance.

Emoluments of Key Management Personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

2023 2022
The number of key management personne! including the Accounting Officer was: 9 8

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding pension
contributions, payments in lisu of pension and employer’s national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the
following ranges was:

Key management Other staff
personnel

2023 2022 2023 2022
No. No. No. No.

£40,001 to £45,000 p.a. 1 -

£55,001 to £60,000 p.a. 1 1
£65,001 to £70,000 p.a. - 4 - -
£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. 3 1 - -
£75,001 to £80,000 p.a. 1 - - -
£85,001 to £90,000 p.a. 1 - - -
£110,001 to £115,000 p.a. 1 1 - -
£160,001 to £165,000 p.a. - 1 - -
£165,001 to £170,000 p.a. 1 - - -
g 8 - -

The disclosure above is hased upon headcount during the year as set out on page 2. The total positions in Key
Management Personnel was 8. During 2022, 2 members of staff were employed as Director of Governance at
different points during the year, both are included in the figures above.

Key Management Personnel (KMP) emoluments are made up as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £'000
Salaries — gross of salary sacrifice and waived emoluments 683 651
Payment in lieu of pension 34 3
Pension contributions 104 137
Total KMP emoluments 821 791
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7. Staff costs (continued)

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary sacrifice
arrangements in place that are not HMRC approved,

The above emoluments inciude the amounts paid to Principal and Chief Executive who is the Accounting Officer
position through the academic year (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Salaries 165 158
Payment in lieu of pension 34 3
Total 199 161
Pension contributions - 34
Total emoluments 199 195

The Corporation has adopted AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and will assess pay in line with
its principles in future. The remuneration package of those staff designated as Senior Post Holders, including the
Principal and Chief Executive, is subject to annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Governing Body
who use benchmarking information to provide objective guidance. The Principal and Chief Executive reports to
the Chair of Corporation who undertakes an annual review of their performance against the College's overall
objectives using both qualitative and quantitative measures of performance.

Relationship of Principal and Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple;

2023 2022
£°000 £°000
Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff 5.75 5.79
Principal and CEQ's total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all staff 5.91 5.95

There was no compensation for less of office paid to former key management personnel.
The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the staff members did not receive any
payment from the College other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses and costs for any
specific courses incurred in the course of their duties.
Severance payments for all staff
The College paid 11 severance payments during the year, disclosed in the following bands:
EO0 - £25000 7
£25,001 - £50,000 3
£50,001 - £100,000 1
Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £11,551. Individually the payments

were: £1,243, £2,970, £3,858, £3,480, Also included in staff restrusturing costs is a payment of compensation of
£9,912.
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8. Other operating expenses

Teaching direct costs

Payments for HE Course validation
Bursary support for learners
Teaching support costs
Administration and central services
Utilities, rent and insurance
Premises maintenance
Examination fees

Fees for subcontracted income

Total Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses include:

Auditors’ remuneration

- financial statements audit

- Other audit services provide by internal auditor
- internal audit

Profit on sale of fixed assets

9. Interest and other finance costs

On bank loans and other loans

Net interest on defined pension asset/liability {Note 24)

Enhanced pension costs

Total Interest and other finance costs

10. Access and participation spending

0O

Blackburn
College

2023 2022
£7000 £7000
1,226 883
737 894
314 292
1,388 1,401
1,801 1,848
1,460 1,284
688 892
965 840
170 47
8,749 8,081
2023 2022
£'000 £2000
37 37

11 .
27 26
327 12
2023 2022
£7000 £7000
437 837
437 637

- 434

40 24
a77 1,095

The total of the approved expenditure in our Access and Participation Plan for the year ended 31 July 2023 was
£1.7m, the actual spend was £1.65m and a breakdown is shown below. Details of the approved plan can be found
at https:/fapis.officeforstudents.org.ukfaccessplansdownloads/2024/BlackburnCollege_APP_2020-

21_V1_10000747 .pdf

Access Investment

Financial support provided to students
Support for disabled students
Research and evaluation expenditure

Total Access and participation spending
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2023 2022
£°000 £'000
1,212 1,128

298 279
142 121
4 9
1,654 1,637
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11. Taxation

The members do not believe that the College was liable for any Corporation Tax arising out of its activities during
either year.,

12. Write offs, Guarantees, Letters of Comfort and Indemnities
Debt written off during the year totalled £18k, this was approved within the College’s delegated limits.

The College did not provide any guarantees, letters of comfort or indemnities throughout the year.
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13. Tangible fixed assets

Freehold Assets in the Fixtures,
Land and Plant and Fittings
o . course of Total
Buildings Machinery Construction and
Freehold Eqguipment
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2022 77,634 8,712 231 7,327 91,904
Additions 1,259 - (15) 2,378 3,622
Disposals (1,796) - - (1,057) (2,853)
As at 31 July 2023 77,097 6,712 216 8,648 92,673
Depreciation
At 1 August 2022 34,118 3,082 - 5,863 43,063
Charge for the year 2,470 193 - 1,063 3,726
Eliminated in respect of disposals (1,696) - - {1,056) (2,752)
At 31 July 2023 34,892 3,275 - 5,870 44,038
Net book value at 31 July 2023 42,205 3,437 216 2,778 48,635
Net book value at 31 July 2022 43,516 3,630 231 1,465 48,842

Land and buildings were valued in 1993 at depreciated replacement cost by the District Valuer. Other tangible
assets inherited from the local education authority at incorporation were valued by the Corporation on a
depreciated replacement cost basis with the assistance of independent professional advice.

Included within Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment are laptops that the DfE gifted to the Coliege to support
disadvantaged learners to access remote learning. The College has applied Section 34 of FRS102, which required
that donated assets are measured at fair value to the College.

14. lnvestments

2023 2022

£ £

investment in joint venture company at cost 1 1
Total investments 1 1

At 31 July 2023 the College held a 7% share of the issued share capital of The Lancashire Colleges Limited. This
is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales. The principle business activity of the
company is to advise and assist educational institutions in respect of funds and grants that may be available to
them.

The Corporation believes that the carrying value for the investments is supported by the underlying net assets.
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15. Endowment assets

2023 2022
£000 £'000
Balance at 1 August 2022 60 60
Movement in the year ) )
Balance at 31 July 2023 ' 60 80
Represented by Cash balances 60 60
16. Debtors
2023 2022
£000 £'000
Amotints falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 1,215 1,176
Prepayments and accrued income 1,990 1,059
Total Debtors 3,205 2,235
17. Creditors: amounts falling due within cne year
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Bank loans 556 716
Trade payables 894 1,433
Other taxation and social security 511 371
Pension Creditor 357 334
Accruals and deferred income 3,950 3,633
Accrual for untaken annual leave 441 4441
Deferred income ~ Government capital grants 1,387 1,031
Amounts owed to the ESFA - 185
Total Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8,096 8,154
18. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2023 2022
£000 £'000
Bank loans 5784 10,180
Deferred income - Government capital grants 12,745 11,796
Total Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 18,5629 21,976
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19. Maturity of debt

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

2023 2022

£'000 £°000
in one year or less 556 716
Between one and two years 556 716
Between two and five years 1,668 2,148
In five years or more 3,580 7,316
Total Debt 6,340 10,896

A secured loan (security held against the ‘Regional Automotive Technology Hub’) of £4m commenced in 2011 at
6.22% repayable by instalments falling due between 1 August 2011 and 31 July 2035 (amount outstanding at July
2023 £0m: 2022 £2m). This loan was repaid in full in October 2022.

A secured loan (security held against the ‘Beacon Centre’) of £13.9m commenced in 2013 of which £12.1m is at
5.92%, £1.8m is subject to SONIA plus margin and repayable by instalments falling due between 24" July 2013
and 23 July 2034,

£2m was paid to reduce the loan balance in October 2022. (Amount outstanding at 2023 £6.3m, 2022 £8.9m).

20. Provisions

Defined

benefit  Enhanced
obligations Pension Total
£°000 £'000 £°000
At 1 August 2022 - 1,215 1,215
Expenditure in the pericd 538 (108) 432
Transferred from income and expenditure account (538) (95) {633}
At 31 July 2023 - 1,014 1,014

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local Government Pension
Scheme. Further details are given in Note 24.

The enhanced pension provision includes £23,272 (2022 £26,199) in respect of former senior post holders.
The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College’s employ and
commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the Statement of

Financial Position date. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding
bodies.
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20. Provisions (confinued)

The principal assumptions for this calculation are:

2023 2022

Discount Rate 5.0% 3.30%

Price Inflation 2.8% 2.90%
21. Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 August Other At 31 July

2022 Cashflows changes 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents 16,085 2,202 - 13,883

Debt due within one year {716) 160 - {556)

Debt due after one year (10,180) 4,396 - {5,784)

Borrowings (10,896} 4,556 - {6,340)

Total changes in net debt 5,189 2,354 . 7,543

22, Capital commitments

The College had £650k of capital commitments at year end and £216k as an asset under construction as at 31
July 2023 (31 July 2022: £707k).

The College has been advised of funding from the FE Capital Transformation Fund in respect of the Victoria
Building. At the year end the College match funding had been agreed and a contractor appointed.

23. Lease obligations
The College had no operating lease commitments as at 31 July 2023 (31 July 2022: none).
24. Defined benefit obligations

The College's employees belong to one of two post-employment benefit plans; the Teachers’ Pension Scheme,
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Lancashire County Council. Both are defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022.

. 2023 2022

Total Pension Cost for the Year Ended £000 £000
Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions paid 2,072 2,091
l.ocal Government Pension Scheme:

Contributions paid 1,000 940

FRS 102 charge 538 2,186

FRS 102 charge in interest 38 {434)
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1,676 2,692
:Enhanced pension charge to Statement of Comprehensive (135) (195)
ncome
Total pension cost for year within staff costs 3,513 4,588
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24. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, These regulations apply to teachers in schools, colleges and other
educational establishments. Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers
and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go basis' — these contributions, along
with those made by employers, are credited to the Excheguer under arrangements governed by the above Act.
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Under the definitions set outin FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions
to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the information available
on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regutations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013,
Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assuming funds are invested in noticnal
investments that produce that real rate of return.

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published
by the Department for Education (the Department) in October 2023. The valuation reported total scheme liabilities
{pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service at the effective date of £262
billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the
valuation date) of £222 billion giving a notional past service deficit of £40 billion (compared to £22 bilfion in the
2016 valuation)

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates will rise to 28.68% from April 2024 (compared to
23.68% during 2018/9).

DfE has agreed to pay a Teachers' Pension Scheme Grant to cover the additional costs during the 2022/23
academic year.

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
website,

The pension contribution paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2.072m (2022: £2.091m)

L.ocal Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by Lancashire
County Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2023 were £1.385m, of which employer's
contributions totalled £0.993m and employees’ contributions totalled £0.392m. The agreed contribution rates for
future years are 16.2% for employers and range from 5.5% to 12.56% for employees, depending on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated to 31 July
2023 by a gqualified independent actuary.

At 31 At 31

July July

2023 2022

Rate of increase in salaries 4.2% 4.20%
Future pensions increases 2.8% 2.80%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.1% 3.50%
Inflation assumption (Consumer Price Index) 2.7% 2.70%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.0% 50.0%
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24, Defined benefit obligations (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

31 July 31 July

2023 2022
Retiring foday:
Males 21.0 22.3
Females 23.4 25.0
Reliring in 20 years:
Males 22.2 23.7
Females 252 26.8
Sensitivity analysis of Pension Fund Balance £000 £000
Discount rate +0.5% (+0.1% 2022) (4,209) (1,381)
Pay growth +0.25% (+0.1% 2022) 317 136
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 1,200 1,711
Inflation rate +0.25% 2,235 1,407
The College’s share of the assets in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Equities instruments 35,229 34,704
Government Bonds 291 -
Other Bonds - 3,235
Property 6,915 8,014
Cash 437 1,176
Other , 29,916 26,395
Total fair value of plan assets 72,788 73,524
Actual return on plan assets 1,618 6,240

The amount included in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as

follows:
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Fair value of plan assefs 72,788 73,524
Present value of plan liabilities (54,230) (72,887)
Present value of unfunded liabilities (27) (54)
Net pensions asset / {liability) (Note 20) 18,531 583

FRS 102 section 28.22 inhibits the recognition of the net defined asset only to the extent that we are able to
recover the surplus through reduced contributions in the future. The surplus cannot be recovered, the balance of
the net defined asset (£538k) has been written off through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The net

asset/liability is therefore Nil..
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24, Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Q2

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows:

Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost

Past service cost

Curtailments

Total

Amotunts included in interest and other finance costs

Net interest (cost)/return

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on pension plan assets
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan liabilities

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income*

Movement in net defined benefit (liability) / asset during year

Net defined liability at 1 August
Movement in year:
Current service cost
Employer contributions
Past service costs
Curtailments
Administration expenses
Net interest on the defined asset/(liability)

Actuarial gain / {loss)

Net defined asset / (liability) at 31 July

2022

2023
£2000 £/000
1,541 2,656
1,541 2,656
2023 2022
£2000 £2000
38 (434)
2023 2022
£°000 £2000
1,618 6,240
16,868 24,148
18,486 30,388
2023 2022
£7000 £7000
583 (27,619)
(1,541) (2,656)
1,000 940
(35) (36)
38 (434)
18,486 30,388
18,531 583

*FRS 102 section 28.22 inhibits the recognition of the net defined asset only to the extent that we are able to
recover the surplus through reduced contributions in the future. The surplus cannot be recovered, the balance of
the net defined asset (£538k) has been written off through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The net

asset/liability is therefore NIL.
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24. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

2023 2022

£°000 £°000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations at start of year 72,941 95,536
Current service cost 1,541 2,656
Interest cost 2,633 1,616
Past service costs - -
Contributions by scheme participants 389 371
Changes in financial assumptions {21,636) {25,230}
Estimated benefits paid (1,511) (1,908)
Curtailments B )
Defined benefit obligations at end of year 54,257 72,941
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of year 73,524 67,917
Interest on plan assets 2,571 1,082
Return / (loss) on plan assets (3.150) 5,158
Administration expenses (35) {36)
Employer contributions 1,000 940
Contributions by scheme participants 389 371
Estimated benefits paid {1,511) {1,208)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 72,788 73,524

These accounts include a historic past service cost of £686k, as adjusted for in 2019, in respect of the McCloud /
Sergeant judgment which ruled that the transitional protection for some members of public service schemes
implemented when they were reformed constituted age discrimination. This provision is 0.8% of the total scheme
liability as at 31 July 2023. The calculation of the adjustment to the past service costs arise from the outcome of
the Court of Appeal judgement is based on a number of key assumptions including:

the form of remedy adopted

how the remedy will be implemented

which members will be affected by the remedy
the earning assumptions

the withdrawal assumption

e & & & @

The other financial and demographic assumptions adopted to calculate the past service cost are the same as those
used to calculate the overall scheme liability. Adopting different assumptions, or making other adjustments to reflect
behavioural changes stemming from the judgment, would be expected to change the disclosed past service cost.
Similarly, aliowing for variations in individual members’ future service or salary progression is expected to produce
higher costs. The past service cost is particularly sensitive to the difference between assumed long term general
pay growth and the CPL. If the long-term salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa lower, then the past service cost
disclosed here would be expected to reduce by 50% and conversely a 0.5% pa increase would increase the
estimated cost by 65%.
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25. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in
which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations
are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the Coliege's financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures.

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £422.20; 5 Governors (2022
£39.80). This represents travel and subsistence expenses, training and other out of pocket expenses incurred in
attending Governor meetings and charity and other events in their official capacity.

No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College during the year (2022: None).
Transactions are detailed below:

Biackburn with Darwen Borough Council is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key
Management Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £220,439 (2022 — £198k), and earned income of
£492 815 {2022 — £555k).

Blackburn Rovers Ltd and Blackburn Ravers Community Trust are organisations in which a Governor has
declared influence as Key Management Personnel, with Joint Control: the College incurred expenditure of
£138,405 (2022 - £300), and earned income of £nil (2022 - £nil).

P M & M Solutions For Business is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key
Management Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £nil (2022 - £nil), and earned income of £810 (2022
-£7,279).

East Lancashire NHS Trust is an organisation in which a Governor has declared infiuence as Key Management
Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £42,761 (2022 - £29,988) and earned income of £3,450 (2022 -
£275).

Lancaster University is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key Management
Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £574,731 (2022 - £691,930) (Degree validation) and earned
income of £1,786 (2022 - £1,929). The Governor is not involved in these arrangements.

Manchester College is an organisation in which a Governor has dedlared influence as Joint Control: the College
incurred expenditure of £1,200 (2022 - £32,500).

Barnfield Blackburn is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Management Personal: the
College earned income of £429,840 (2022 - Enil).

Samlesbury Hall Trust is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Management Personal:
the College earned income of £977 (2022 - £nil).

Lancashire Colleges Principals Group is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key
Management Personnel: the College incurred expenditure of £5,000 (2022 - £5,000).

Forbes Solicitors is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Joint Control the College
incurred expenditure of £13,454 (2022 - £9,223).

Nybble Interactive is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Full Control: the College
incurred expenditure of £40,326 (2022 - £15,2986).

Edgehill University is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Key Management Personnel:
the College received income of £1,725 (2022 - £1,000).

The Lancashire Training Colleges is an organisation in which a Governor has declared influence as Director: the
College earned income of £23,438 (2022 - £63,654).
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Transactions with the ESFA and Office for Students are detailed in notes 2, and 17.

26. Amounts Disbursed as agent
Learner Support Funds

Funding body grants — bursary support
Funding body grants — discretionary learner support

Disbursed to Students
Administration costs

Balance unspent at 31 July, included in creditors

2023 2022
£°000 £000
69 147
1,122 933
1,191 1,080
(819) (727)
(40) (34)
332 319

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as a
paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the

Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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